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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
BASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOIJRI

EASTERN DTVISION

CARIBBEA}.I CREME, INC.,

, 
ptaintif(,

vs.

KRISPY KREME DOUGHNUTS, INC.,
a North Cuolina Corporation,

Serve:
Iftispy Kreme Doughnuts, Inc.
c/o Corporate Se'rvice Conrprny
Registered Agent
327 Hillsborough Steet
RaleighNC 27603

KRISPY KREME DOUGHNUT
CORPORATION, a North Carolina
Corporation,

Serve:
Krispy Kremc Doughnuts Corp,
c/o Corporate Service Company
Registered Agent
327 Hillsboroug! Str,eet
Raleigh NC 27603

and

HDN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A
Dehware Corporation,

Serve:
HDN Development Corp.
CSC-Lawyers Incorporati ng Service Co,
Rcgistered Agent
421 West Main Stcet
Frankficrt, KY

Defendants.
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COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Caribbean Crerno.lnc., hereby submits its Complaint against Defendants Krispy

Ifueme Doughnuts, Inc., Krispy Krcme Doughnuts Corpomtion, and HDN Devetopme'nt

Corporntion.

INTRODUETION

Plaintiff owns federal and common law trademuk rights in the tnademarlr CARIBBEAT{

CREME for a flavorcd semi-frozcn bwerage. Plaintiff seeks injunctive rclief;, damages, and

attorney's fecs under the lideral Ianham Act, Missorui stalutory law, and comrnon law based on

Defe'lrdants' rutauthorized use of "Cadbbean Kreme" for a flavored semi-frozef beverage that

competes directly with Plaintiff s pmduct.

THE PARTIES, JURTSn|CT|ON, AND VENUE

l. PlaintiffCaribbcan Creme,Inc. ("Caribbean Creme") is a Missouri Corporation

with its principal place ofbusiness in St. L,ouis, Missouri.

2. Defendant Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, Inc., ("KKDI") is a North carolina

Corporation with its principal place of business in Winston Salanr, North Carolina.

3' Defendant Kriqpy Krcme Doughnut Corporation ('I(KDC') is a North Carolina

Corporation with jts principal placc of business in rilinston Salern, North Camlina. Upon

information and belief, KKDC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of KKDI.

4. Defendant HDN Derrclopmcnt, Inc. ("HDN") is a Kennrcky Corporation with its

principal place of business in Wilmington, Delaware. Upon information and belief, HDN is a

wholly-owned subsidiary and intellcctuat property holding company of KI(DI.

5. Caribbean Crcme asserts claims under sections 32 and 43 of the federal Lanham

Acl, l5 U.S'C. $$ I l14 and 1125. This Court,lherefore, has juristliction over this action

pursuant to 28 U'S.C. $$ 1338 and 1357, principles of supplernentatjurisdiction, and pursuant to
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application ofMissouri's long-ann statutcs, Mo. Rev. Stat. $E 506.500.

6, Defeodanre, individually and collectively, conduct bueiness in this District and are

thus subjeot to personal jurisdiction in this Court.

7, Venue is prope,rin this District pureuail to 28 U.S.C. $ l39l(b) in thnt a

substantial part o,f the F/ents giving rise to Csribbean. Creme's claims occunod in this District.

ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS

8, Sinco 1994, Caribbcan Creme has manufacturcd and sold a flavorod, serni.fiozen

drink under the tradcnmark CARIBBEATI CREME in Missorrri and elsewhere in the United

States,

9. Caibbean Crcme o\ryns a fcderal fradernark registration for e design mark

containing the literal clcmcnts CARIBBEATI CnEUe (and Design), U.S. Reg. No. 1,961,679,

for'hon-dairy, flavored frozen confections and ice cream drinks" (the "'679 Registation'),

issued on Msrrh 12,1996, The '679 Registation is valid and incontestable.

10. Caribbcan Crerne owns valid common law trademark rights in the tradcrnark

CARIBBPAII CREME for flavored, semi-frozen beverages in Missouri and throughout the

United States based on Caribbean Cr,cme's continuous use and promotion of goods bearing the

CARIBBEAN CREME mark since at least 1994.

I l. Upon information and belie{, Defendant HDN is responsible for selecting,

clearing, registering and protecting trademarks to be rsed by Defendants IC(DI and KKDI, and

their {ianchisees, licensees, and other affiliates.

12. Defendants, individually or collcctively, own or, tbrough licensing and/or

franchise agrcements control the use of tadsmarks by, hundreds of retail stores ("Krispy Kremc

Stores") featuring doughnuts and othcr food items. These stores are located throughout the

united States, with fivc stores located in the St. r,ouis mctropolitan area.
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13. Arnong the pmducts sold in the Krispy Krorne Stores under Defendants' control

are flavored frozenor serni-frozen smoothie-type bevereges called Chillcrs.

14. Sometime prior to April 8, 2008, Defsndants began adve,rtising e new flavor for

the Chillers beverages called "Caribbean l(rsrtle," Thege advertisements included a prominent

placeanent on Defendant I(KDI's home web page, indicating that the "Caribbcan Krcme"

product would bc availablc for pruohase at Krispy lfueme Storps on April E, 200E and rururing

through Jwre 2, 200E.

15. On or about April 8, 200E, trftispy Kre'me Stores began selling the "Caribbean

I(reme" product,

16. Under Defendants' conEol and authorization, one or more of the Krispy Kranre

Storos in St. Louis County is currsntly selling the "Caribbean Kreme" product and is displrying

prorninent advertis€ments for the "Cadbboan Kreme" product,

17. Dcfendants use or authorize and control the use of the "Caribbean Kreme"

lrademark and control and benelit financially from the sale of the "Caribbean tr(reme" product in

all of the Krispy Krome Stores.

18. The "Caribbean I(lemd'prgduct competes directlywith Caribbean Cremc's

CARIBBEAII CREME producl.

19, Upon information and belief, Defendents were aware of Caribbean Creme's

CARIBBEAN CREME tradernark, and the rights associated therewith, prior to tlre use of

"Caribbean Ktenle" in Defendants adverrtising and in connection with Defendan$' products,

COUNT I
FEDERAL TRADEMARK INTRINCDMDNT UNDER 15 U.s.c. $ III4(T)(a)

20, Caribbeen Creme roallegcs each and every allegation of the preceding paragraphs

of this Complaint as if fully sst forth hercin.

21. Defendants' use of "Caribbean Kreme" has caused and is tikely to cause

4
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confitsion, causc mistcke, or deceive customcrs and potc'ntial customers as to the effitiation,

conncction or association of the pgrties and rs to the origin, sponsorship, or approval of the

parties'products in violation of l5 U.S.C. $$ I I la(l)(a) and thuE infringes Carjbbean Creme's

'679 Regishation.

22. Defendants' usc of "Caribbeur Kreme" was done with a willful disregard of

Caribbean Creme' s trademgrk rights,

23. Defcrrdants' wrongful conduct constitutes an "exceptional casC'under 15 U.S.C.

$ l l lT(a).

24. Defeodants' wr,ongful conduct has causod and witl continue to cause incparablc

damages to Caribbean Crerne.

WHEREFORE, Caribbean Oeme prays forjudgmcnt against Defendants on this count

and requests the following relief

^. 
A permanent injunction against Defendents and all persons acting in privity or

active concert with them, enjoining thern from usi.ng in any milmer "Caribbean

Krelne" or my other mark that is confirsingly similar to Carjbbean Creme's

CARIBBEAN CREME tradenrark;

b. An order requiring Defcndants and all pcrsons acting in privity or active concert

with them to dclivcr to Caribbcan Creme for destruction all goods, signs,

advertisements, litsfafurc, business forms, cards, labcls, packages, wrappers,

pamphlets, broohues, reoeptacles, and any other written or printed rnaterial in

their possesoion or urder their control which bear "Caribbean Kreme"l

c. fui order reguiring iut accoltDlilg and award of profits made by Defendants as a

result of their usc of 'oCaribbeau Kreme";

d. fui order awatding damages sustaircd by Caribbean Creme as a result of
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Defcndantr' use of "Caribbean l(rcme," to be treblcd in accordance with l5

u.s.c.  g 1l l7;

e. An order awarding Caribbean Creme its attomells' fees pursuant to l5 U.S.C. S

l l17;

f. An ordec awarding Caribbean Cremc intercst, costr, and such othcr rclief as the

court may deern just and equitable.

COUNT II
FEDERAL UNFAIR COMPETITION ITNDER t5 U.S.C. g ll2s(eXlXA)

25. Caribbean Crtrne realleges esch and eve(y allegetion of the preceding paragraphs

of this Complaint as if fully set forrh herein,

26. Dcfcndants' use of "Caribbean Krsmc" has caused and is likely lo cause

confusion, cause mistake, or deoeive customers and potential customers as to the affiliation,

cormection or association of the parties and as to the origin, sporxorship, or approval of the

perties' products in violation of l5 U.S.C. $ $ I 125(a)(l XA), and thus infringes Caribbean

Creme's rights in its CARIBBEAN CR-EME mark.

21. Defcndants' use of "Caribbean Kteme" was done with a willful disregard of

Caribbean Creme's tnadernark rights,

28. Defendants' wrongful conduct coastitutes an "exceptional case" rurdcr ,5 U.S.C.

$ l1 l7(a).

29- Defendants' wrongfiil conduct has caused and wilt continue to cause ineparable

darnages to Caribbean Creme.

WHEREFORE, Caribbcan Creme prays forjudgmcnt against Defendants on this count

and requests thc following relicf;

a. A perrnanent injunction against Defendants and atl pcrsons acting in privity or

active concert with them, enjoining them from using in any maruler "Caribbean
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K-retne" or ar|y other mark that is confusingly sirni,lar to Caribbean Crcrne,s

CARIBBEAI.I CREME trademark;

b' Arr order requiring Defendants and all penrons rcting in privity or active concert

with thern to deliver to Caribbean Crerne for destruction all goods, signs,

advertisemente, literafure, business forms, cards, labefs, packages, wrappcrs,

pamphlets' brochurcs, receptacles, and any othervnritten or printed material in

theirpossession or rurder tbeir control whioh bear "Caribbcan Krcrnc,,;

c' fui ordcr requiring an accounting and award ofprofits rnade by Defendsnts ss a

tesult of their use of ,,Caribbean Krerne";

d' An order awarding damages sustained by Caribbean Creme as a result of

Defcndants' usc of "Caribbean Kreme." to be trebled iu accordance with l5

u.s.c.gl l l7;

e' An ordcr awarding Caribbean Cr,eme its attorncys' fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. $
t t tT;

f' An order awardiqg Caribbean Creme interest, costs, and such other relief ag the

court may deern just and oquirable.

COUNT III
COMMON LAW TRADEMARK INIRINGEMENT AND UNF'AIR COMPETITION

30' Caibbean Crerne realleges eacb and every allegation of the preceding paragraphs

of this Complaint as if fully sct foith herein.

3l ' Defendants' uso of "Caribbean Krsmo" has caused and is likely to cause

confisioru causc mistake, or decsivc customers aud potential cus0orners as to the alliliation,

connection or association of the parties and as to the origin, sponsorship. or approval of the

parties' products in violation of the oommon law of Missouri and other States,

32. Defendants' use of "Ceribbeen Kreme" was done with a malicious inlent to harm
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and with a willful disregard of Caribbern Crerne and its tradernark rights,

3t. Defendants' wrongful conduct has caused and will continue lo cause ineparable

damages to Caribbean Crsme.

WHEREFORE' Cadbbean Clerne prays for judgment againot Defendants on thi,s count

and requests the following relief:

a, A permanent injunctiotr against Defendants and all percons acting in privity or

active concert with them, enjoining them from using in eny msnner "Caribbean

Krcmc" or any other rnark that is confusingfy similar to Caribbean Crcme's

CARIBBEAN CREME tradernark;

b- An order requiring Defendants end all p€rsous acting in privity or aoive concert

with them to deliver to Caribbean Crerne for destruction all goods, signs,

advertisements, litemture, business forms, cards, labels, packages, wrappgrs,

pamphf ets, brochures, rcceptacles, and any other written or printed material in

their possession or under their control which bear "Caribbcan Krcme";

c. Arr ordcr awarding damages sustaincd by Caribbean Crerne as a result of

Defendants' use of ..Caribbean l(twe";

d. An, order awarding Caribbean Creme punitive damages;

e. An order awarding Caribbean Creme intcrest, costs, and srrch otber relief as the

court may deern just and equitable,

COUNT IV
TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT UNDER MO. REV. STAT. $ 417.066(1)

34. Caribbean Cremc rrallcges each and every allegation of the preceding paragraphs

of this Complaint as if fully set forth heroin.

35. Defondants' use of "Cafibbean l(rerne" has caused and is likely to cause

confusion, oause rnistake, or deceive custoners and potcntial custorners eB to the affiliation,
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connection or association of thc perties and rs to the origin, sponsorship, or approval ofthe

pafiies' products in violation of Mo. Rw. Stat. $ 417,006(l),

36. Defcndants' use of "Caribbean Krcme" wrs done with a malicious intent to harm

and with a willful disregard of Caribbean Creme and its tradcrnark rights.

37. Dcfcndurts' wrongful conduct has caused and will continue to cause irreparable

darnages to Caribbean Creme.

WHEREFORE, Cadbbean Creme prays forjudgnent against Defendants on this count

and requosts the following relief:

a. A perrnanent injunction agginst Defendants and all persons acting in privity or

active concerl with thErn, enjoining thern from using in any manner "Caribbean

Kreme" or any other mark that is confueingly uimilar to Caribbean Creme's

CARIBBEAII CREME uade'mark;

b. An order requiring Defen&nts and all peroons acting in privity or active concert

with them to deliver to Caribbean Creme for destuction all goods, eigns,

advenisecne,nts, literature, business forms, cards, labets, packages, wrappers,

pamphlets, brochures, receptacles, and any other written or printed material in

their possession or under their control which bear "Caribbean Kreme";

c. An order awarding damages sustaincd by Caribbean Cremc as a result of

Defendants' uge of "Caribbean Kreme";

d. An ordr awarding Caribbean Crcrne punitive damages;

c. fui ordcr awarding Caribbean Crerne inlerest, oosts, and suoh other relief as the

court may deem just and equitable.

COTINT V
TRADEMARK DTLUTION UNDER MO. REV. STAT, $ 4lz06r(1)

3E. Caribbean Cheme reallegee each and every rllegation of the preceding paragraphs
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of this Cornplaint as if fully set forrh hcrein.

39. Defendails' use of "Cribbean Kreme" has caueed and is likely to cadse the

dilution of the distinctivc ouality of Caribboan Creme's CARtsBEAN CREME mark in

violation ofMo. Rev. Stat. g 417.061(l).

40. DefendrnB' wrongfitl conduct has caused and will continue to causc irreparable

damages to Ceribbean Creme.

WHEREFOR.E, Ceribbean Crqne prays for judgment against Defendants on this count

and requests the following relief:

a, A permutent injunction against Dcfsndants and all persons acting in privity or

active concert with thern, cnjoining them ftom using in any manner "Caribbean

Ktens" or any other mark that is confusingly similar to Caribbcan Creme'g

CARIBBEAN CREITIIE tademark;

Al order awarding Caribbean Crerne interest, costs, and such other relief as the courl

may decm just and equitable.

IURY DEMAND

Plaintiff requests a triat by jury on all issues so triable.

ARMSTRONG TEASDALE LLP

MichaelLongmeyer ED Mo. No. 58218
One Metropolitan Square, Suite 2600
St. Louis, Missouri 63102-2740
(314) 62t-50',t0
(3 | 4> 621 -5065 (facsimilc)

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF
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